Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority
435 Nebraska Avenue, PO Box 477

K
Toledo, Ohio 43697-0477
419-259-9400 Fax 419-259-3495
TDD 419-259-9529

METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY www.lucasmha.org

QUOTATIONS FOR SMALL PURCHASES (QSP)

QSP 19-Q006
Third Party COBRA Administrator Services

Issue Date: June 20, 2019 Due Date: July 25, 2019 at 3:00 pm ET

Expected Begin Date: September 1, 2019

Overview

Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority (LMHA) is seeking written quotations for all labor,
material, supervision and services required for one or more licensed entities to provide Third
Party COBRA Administrator Services. The rates provided by the offeror should be a flat rate
inclusive of all fees, charges, administrative, insurance costs and any other costs involved in the
fee. Additionally, LMHA will not provide for any costs incurred in the development of the quote

offered.

LMHA currently has 130 full time employees that participate in LMHA’s insurance benefits.

Scope of Work

Responsibilities will include, but are not limited to the following areas:

Distribution of all notices

Premium billing, collection and reconciliation (102% of the premium payment
amount)

Accessible designated representative knowledgeable in all aspects of COBRA
Experienced personnel with access to expertise that can effectively address all
legislative and legal COBRA questions

Ability to comply with current and future COBRA regulations

Ability to receive and transmit enrollment and tracking information
electronically

Reporting

Maintenance of all COBRA eligibility

Provide customer service and complaint resolution

Provide an Open Enrollment

Manage open enrollment communication

Send COBRA payment to the State of Ohio

Demetria M. Simpson
President and Chief Executive Officer
Board of Commissioners

William J. Brennan, Chairman, Alisha Gant, Vice Chairman, Barbara J. Fuqua, Hugh W. Grefe, James A. Peppers
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e Notify the State of Ohio of non-payment

e Notify the State of Ohio of COBRA Enrollment

e Take over existing COBRA participants

e Receipt and maintenance of rejection forms

e User-friendly operating formats (Internet, traditional and custom)

A. Price Quote Content Requirements:
1. References:

The Contractor must provide the names, addresses, telephone numbers and contact
persons of three (3) current clients or clients from the past three years for whom
similar services required by this price quote were performed. Of special interest to
LMHA are any customer references from state or local housing agencies and/or
financial institutions. LMHA reserves the right to contact any known current or former
clients.

2. Price Proposal:
A description of pricing for the Third-Party COBRA Administrator Services should be
provided. LMHA does not pay travel expenses, late fees or interest charges.

3. Required Forms:
The Contractor will execute and return the following forms:

e HUD 5369-C
e Contractor / Vendor Qualifications Statement
e EEOC

e Non-Collusive Affidavit
e Section 3 Forms — Either D or D-2
e (Quotation Request Form

General Information

Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority is a metropolitan housing authority organized and existing
under the Ohio Revised Code Section 3735.27, et seq., and is governed by the U.S. Housing Act
of 1937, as amended, and subject to regulation under Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulation.
LMHA is governed by a five (5) person Board of Commissioners, appointed pursuant to the above
cited statute. The President and Chief Executive Officer controls the daily operations.
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The Vision of LMHA is “To be a premier partner in creating communities of choice in the Greater
Toledo Area”.

The Mission of LMHA is “To create and maintain sustainable, affordable housing opportunities,
provide pathways to a better quality of life, and empower vibrant communities.”

LMHA is committed to a goal of thirty-five percent of all contract funds being awarded to Minority
Business Enterprises (MBE). The firms submitting proposals are encouraged to include MBE
participation to the maximum extent possible.

AFFH Compliance. The parties agree to affirmatively further fair housing. For purposes of the
AFFH rule, the duty to “affirmatively further fair housing” means taking meaningful actions, in
addition to combating discrimination, that overcome patterns of segregation and foster inclusive
communities free from barriers that restrict access to opportunity based on protected
characteristics.

Submission Instructions

All “hard-copy” proposals must be submitted and time-stamped “received” in the designated HA
office by no later than the submittal deadline stated herein (or within any ensuing addendum). A
total of 1 original signature copy (marked "ORIGINAL") and 3 exact copies (each of the 4 separate
proposal submittals shall have a cover) of the “hard copy” proposal submittal, shall be placed
unfolded in a sealed package and addressed to:

Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority
435 Nebraska Ave

Toledo, OH 43604

Attention: Sherry Tobin

By 3:00 PM ET on July 25, 2019

Please note that an electronic copy of the proposal may be requested after the solicitation has
closed.

The completed submission package must be received by the time and date listed on the cover
of this QSP.

Proposals received after the deadline will not be considered.
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All vendors must carefully review their final proposals. Once the file has been opened, proposals
cannot be changed; with the exception that LMHA may request information or respond to
inquiries for clarification purpose only.

All vendors submitting a proposal must agree to honor the terms and conditions contained
herein for the life of the contract.
Applicable Documents

The following documents are hereby attached to this QSP by reference and also available to be
downloaded on the eProcurement website:

Document Attachments
id
1 QSP 19-Q006 Quotations for Small Purchases — Third Party COBRA Administrator Services
2 Quotation Request Form
3 HUD 5370-C Section 2 General Conditions for Non-Construction Contracts (With or Without
Maintenance Work) (1/1/2017)
4 HUD 5369-B - Instructions to Offerors Non-Construction
5 HUD 5369-C — Certifications and Representations of Offerors Non-Construction Contract
6 Contractor’s Certificate Concerning Equal Employment Opportunities (EEOC)
7 Non-Collusive Affidavit
8 Contractor/ Vendor Qualifications Statement
0 HUD Table 5.1 Contract Clauses — Small Purchases other than Construction
10 LMHA Section 3 Forms (01/2019) Forms D, D-1 and D-2

Minimum qualifications of individuals assigned to this project
Possess all appropriate licenses as required by the State of Ohio to fulfill the obligations of this
solicitation.

Proof of Insurance for Contractors and Vendors
Workers Compensation:
1. LMHA requires that contractors and vendors supply LMHA with a current Workers
Compensation Certificate.
2. LMHA requires that the Workers Compensation Certificate be valid for the term of the
contract.
3. Contractors and vendors will immediately provide verification of coverage for the
contract term.
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General and Commercial Liability:
1. Contractor agrees to provide proof of General Liability Insurance coverage with combined
single limit for bodily injury and property damage not less than $1 million per occurrence.
2. Such coverage must be maintained for the term of the contract.

Insurance Automobile Liability:

Contractor also agrees to provide proof of Automobile insurance of owned and non-owned
vehicles used on the sites or in connection therewith for a combined single limit for bodily injury
and property damage not less than $500,000 per occurrence.

Indemnity:

Contractors and vendors agree to indemnify LMHA, to the fullest extent provided by law, for any
and all claims arising out of their performance of the contracts.

Processing:
LMHA’s Manager of Procurement shall be responsible for obtaining proof of the listed above
documents and ensuring that LMHA contracts have the appropriate indemnifications.

Contract Period — Funding & Invoicing

The contract period will be for one (1) year with the option by LMHA to extend for four (4)
additional one-year periods. The offeror (s) can claim payment only for services already provided,
in amount determined by the negotiated rate. No advance payment will be made. Payment by
LMHA is made within 30 days of receipt of invoices and any required documentation.

At minimum, invoices require:
= Purchase Order Number
= Date of Service
=  Property Name
= Service Address
= Description of Service(s) Provided
= |nvoice Number
= |nvoice Date

LMHA may issue purchase orders or task orders electronically (i.e. email or fax), via the
Procurement Department or designee, depending upon the nature of the request.

Additionally, all invoices require electronic submittals for approval. Please adhere to the
following submission procedure:
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Proceed to LMHA’s website — www.lucasmha.org, select “Business Partners” at the top, Doing
Business with LMHA. The first menu item is Vendor Invoice Submission; click on “Vendor Invoice
Submission Portal” and, complete the cover sheet. Attach your invoice to the cover sheet. Make
sure you have a purchase order number.

Invoices not submitted as directed above will result in delay of payment.

Type of Contract

An Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ or ID/IQ) contract provides for an indefinite
guantity of supplies or services during a fixed period. Should an IDIQ be issued, this type of
contract does NOT require LMHA to order a specific maximum quantity of supplies or services.

Confidentiality & Security
Any vendor that has access to confidential information will be required to keep that information
confidential.

Availability of Funds

This QSP and all agency contracts are contingent on the availability of funds. If, during the QSP
process, funds are not available for the proposed services, the QSP process will be canceled. The
vendor will be notified at the earliest possible time. LMHA is not required to compensate the
vendor for any expenses incurred as a result of the QSP process.

Non-Appropriation Clause

The proposed services will be subject to termination in the subsequent fiscal years if the sufficient
funds are not appropriated and budgeted or are not otherwise available to continue making
payments for the equipment of other services performing similar functions and services.

Termination

LMHA reserves the right to terminate an agreement without prior notification for reasons it
deems in the best interest of LMHA. If terminated, LMHA will notify the contractor of the
termination in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall pay contractor for
services rendered prior to contractor’s receipt of the Notice of the Agreement Termination.

General Information and/or Requirements

Successful offeror(s) must provide LMHA with:
=  Price form

= Attachments completed in full (and notarized if required)
= Qualifications (to include copies of any certifications/licenses)
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= Any additional information or material that LMHA needs and requests to assist in the
evaluation of quotes received

Successful award must provide LMHA with:
= Current copy of its Ohio Workers’ Compensation Certificate (if applicable)

= Current copy of general liability insurance certificate naming LMHA as an additional insured,

which shall be made “primary” to LMHA’s general liability policy
=  Copy of W-9 form

Evaluation Criteria

The selective process may involve the ranking of proposers by an appointed LMHA evaluation
committee. Evaluation criteria to be used in reviewing quotes and their respective weights are
as follows:

General Evaluation Criteria Point Value (Total: 100 Points Maximum)

Max Value FACTOR DESCRIPTION

25 No. 1: Demonstrated Quality of Performance and Past Record of Professional
Experience in undertaking assignments similar to those described in the Scope of
Services; to include timely and successful completion as verified by reference checks
or other means, citing examples of multifamily housing with similar project
completion in size and scope and possessing necessary equipment.

30 No. 2: Proposal Price relative to project.
20 No. 3: Capacity and Qualifications to Perform Services, including licenses and
public housing / government experience based on the documentation provided.
25 No. 4: On evidence of related experience, with experience as a Third-Party
Administrator ranking highest.
Max Value
100 Total Points (Other than Section 3 Business Preference of Compliance Points)

Section 3 Business Concern Preference Point Value (Total: 15 Points Maximum)

Preference means, if at any time a contractor should bid or issue a response to a Quotation
for Small Purchases (QSP), a Request for Proposal (RFP) or an Invitation for Bid (IFB) and your
price and qualifications or proposal are equal to any Non-Section 3 Business Concern, you will
receive Preference in that contract award. Preference points shall be added to the total
number of available rating points.
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Reference Chart Below:

PRIORITY CLAIMED MAX FACTOR
(Mark "X") POINT TYPE FACTOR DESCRIPTION
VALUE

Objective | SECTION 3 BUSINESS PREFERENCE
PARTICIPATION: (NOTE: A maximum of 15
points awarded).

15 points Priority I, Category 1a: Business concerns
that are 51 percent or more owned by
residents of the housing development or
developments for which the Section 3-
covered assistance is expended.

13 points Priority I, Category 1b: Business concerns
whose workforce includes 30 percent of
residents of the housing development for
which the Section 3-covered assistance is
expended, or within three (3) years of the
date of first employment with the business
concern, were residents of the Section 3-
covered housing development.

11 points Priority lll, Category 2a: Business concerns
that are 51 percent or more owned by
residents of any other housing development
or developments.

9 points Priority IV, Category 2b: Business concerns
whose workforce includes 30 percent of
residents of any other public housing
development or developments, or within
three (3) years of the date of first
employment with the business concern,
were “Section 3” residents of any other
public housing development.

7 points Priority V, Category 3: Business concerns
participating in HUD Youth-build programs
being carried out in the metropolitan area
in which the Section 3-covered assistance
is expended.

5 points Priority VI, Category 4a: Business concerns
that are 51 percent or more owned by
Section 3 residents in the metropolitan
area, or whose permanent, full-time
workforce includes no less than 30 percent
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of Section 3 residents in the metropolitan
area, or within three (3) years of the date
of employment with the business concern,
were Section 3 residents in the
metropolitan area.

3 points Priority VII, Category 4b: Business concerns
that subcontract in excess of 25 percent of
the total amount of subcontracts to Section
3 business concerns.

Reservation of Rights

LMHA reserves the right to:
= Reject any or all quotes in whole or in part, to waive any informality in the QSP process, to
waive any and all informalities or irregularities in any quotation submission or to terminate the
QSP process at any time, if deemed by the Agency to be in its best interests.

= Not to award a contract pursuant to this QSP.

= Terminate a contract awarded pursuant to this QSP, at any time for its convenience upon 10
days written notice to the successful quoter(s).

= Determine the days, hours and locations that the successful quoter(s) shall provide the services
called for in this QSP and the right to increase or decrease sites and locations as LMHA desires.

= Retain all quotes submitted and not permit withdrawal for a period of 60 days subsequent to
the deadline for receiving quotes without the written consent of LMHA.

= Negotiate the fees quoted by the submitting entity.

= Reject and not consider any quote that does not meet the requirements of this QSP, including
but not necessarily limited to incomplete quotes and/or quotes offering alternate or non-
requested services.

= Have no obligation to compensate any quoter for any costs incurred in responding to this QSP.

= Make an award to multiple quoters (including joint ventures).
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= Select quoter(s) for specific purposes or for any combination of specific purposes
= To defer the selection and award of any quoter(s) to a time of LMHA’s choosing.

= Atanytime during the QSP or contract process, to prohibit any further participation by a quoter
or reject any quote submitted that does not conform to any of the requirements detailed
herein. By accessing the nahro.economicengine.com Internet System (hereinafter, the “noted
Internet System” or the “System”) and by downloading this document or receiving via a direct
solicitation, each prospective quoter is thereby agreeing to abide by all terms and conditions
listed within this document and within the noted Internet System, and further agrees that
he/she will inform LMHA in writing within 5 days of the discovery of any item listed herein or
of any item that is issued thereafter by LMHA that he/she feels needs to be addressed. Failure
to abide by this time frame shall relieve LMHA, but not the prospective quoter, of any
responsibility pertaining to such issue.

The contract award will be made to the offeror(s) whose quotation is most advantageous to
LMHA, considering price, qualifications, experience and references. This solicitation may be
canceled and all quotations that have already been received may be rejected if the services are
no longer required or the price exceeds available funds and for good cause when it is in the best
interests of LMHA.

LMHA will take affirmative measures to ensure that all respondents are treated without regard
to their age, race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual orientation,
handicap/disability or military status in consideration for award of any contract entered into
pursuant to this notice.

This Request for Price Quotation is not an offer to buy and shall not be assumed as such.

Note: All inquiries must be received via email, no later than 12:00 P.M. Eastern Time Thursday, July 18,
2019.

Direct Quotations with Qualifications and required forms to:
Sherry Tobin, Manager

Procurement and Contracts Department

Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority

435 Nebraska Avenue

Toledo, Ohio 43604

E-mail: stobin@lucasmha.org
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For Scope of Services-Related Questions:

Amy Becker, Human Resources Benefits Representative
Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority

Phone: 419-259-9533

E-mail: abecker@Imha.org

For Section 3-Related Questions:
Martice Bishop, Section 3 Compliance Coordinator
E-mail: mbishop@lucasmha.org

Quotes Must Be Received No Later Than July 25, 2019 at 3:00 PM ET
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Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority
435 Nebraska Avenue
Toledo, Ohio 43604

Kl
Fax 419-259-3495
TDD 419-259-9529
www.lucasmha.org
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Quotation Request Form

Offeror: Terms: N30

Quote Expiration Date:

To Whom It May Concern:

We are currently developing a program of vendor sources. Therefore, we would appreciate a quote from
you on the service listed within the Quotations for Small Purchases (QSP) #19-Q006 /Third Party COBRA
Administrator Services. Quotations are due no later than July 25, 2019 at 3:00pm ET. Please forward this
form and all documentation per delivery instructions as listed. Indicate when your price quote shall expire.

Thank you,

Sherry Tobin, Manager

Procurement & Contracts

Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority
stobin@lucasmha.org
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Pricing Items
Within the eProcurement system, Quoters are required to provide pricing for the Lot of items as detailed

below. Paper based forms are required to respond to this QSP.

Service Description Per Month Total Cost

Provide the following services:

* Notices to Qualified Beneficiaries

* Mailing and Documentation Services

* Premium Collection, Notices and Reports

* Online Services for Employers and COBRA participants
* Communication with State of Ohio (Payments)

* Implementation and Educational Support

* Document Retention Services

* Relationship Management

1 Lot

Third Party COBRA Administrator Services - Total

Federal I.D. # Phone #: Date:

Authorized Signature:

Title:

Email:
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General Conditions for Non-Construction

Contracts
Section Il — (With Maintenance Work)

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Office of Labor Relations

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 3/31/2020)

Public Reporting Burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions,
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send
comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the
Reports Management Officer, Office of Information Policies and Systems, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, D.C.
20410-3600; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0157), Washington, D.C. 20503. Do not send this

completed form to either of these addressees.

Applicability. This form HUD-5370C has 2 Sections. These
Sections must be inserted into non-construction contracts as
described below:

1) Non-construction contracts (without maintenance) greater
than $100,000 - use Section I;

2) Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine maintenance
as defined at 24 CFR 905.200) greater than $2,000 but not
more than $100,000 - use Section II; and

3) Maintenance contracts (including nonroutine maintenance),
greater than $100,000 — use Sections | and II.

Section Il — Labor Standard Provisions for all Maintenance
Contracts greater than $2,000

1.  Minimum Wages

(a) All maintenance laborers and mechanics employed under
this Contract in the operation of the project(s) shall be paid
unconditionally and not less often than semi-monthly, and
without subsequent deduction (except as otherwise
provided by law or regulations), the full amount of wages
due at time of payment computed at rates not less than
those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary
of Housing and Urban Development which is attached
hereto and made a part hereof. Such laborers and
mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate on the
wage determination for the classification of work actually
performed, without regard to skill. Laborers or mechanics
performing work in more than one classification may be
compensated at the rate specified for each classification for
the time actually worked therein; provided, that the
employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time
spent in each classification in which work is performed. The
wage determination, including any additional classifications
and wage rates approved by HUD under subparagraph
1(b), shall be posted at all times by the Contractor and its
subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and
accessible place where it can be easily
seen by the workers.

(b) (i) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in
the wage determination and which is to be employed under
the Contract shall be classified in conformance with the
wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional
classification and wage rate only when the following criteria
have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification
required is not performed by a classification in the
wage determination;

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the
industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate bears a reasonable
relationship to the wage rates contained in the
wage determination.

(0] The wage rate determined pursuant to this
paragraph shall be paid to all workers performing work

2.

in the classification under this Contract from the first
day on which work is performed in the classification.

Withholding of funds

The Contracting Officer, upon his/her own action or upon
request of HUD, shall withhold or cause to be withheld from the
Contractor under this Contract or any other contract subject to
HUD-determined wage rates, with the same prime Contractor,
so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics employed
by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages
required by this clause. In the event of failure to pay any laborer
or mechanic employed under this Contract all or part of the
wages required under this Contract, the Contracting Officer or
HUD may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action
as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further
payment or advance until such violations have ceased. The
Public Housing Agency or HUD may, after written notice to the
Contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account
of the Contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees
to whom they are due.

3. Records

4.

(a) The Contractor and each subcontractor shall make and
maintain for three (3) years from the completion of the work
records containing the following for each laborer and
mechanic:

(i) Name, address and Social Security Number;
(i) Correct work classification or classifications;
(i) Hourly rate or rates of monetary wages paid,;
(iv) Rate or rates of any fringe benefits provided,
(v) Number of daily and weekly hours worked;
(vi) Gross wages earned;

(vii) Any deductions made; and

(viii) Actual wages paid.

(b) The Contractor and each subcontractor shall make the
records required under paragraph 3(a) available for
inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized
representatives of HUD or the HA and shall permit such
representatives to interview employees during working
hours on the job. If the Contractor or any subcontractor
fails to make the required records available, HUD or its
designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take
such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension
of any further payment, advance or guarantee of funds.

Apprentices and Trainees

(a) Apprentices and trainees will be permitted to work at less
than the predetermined rate for the work they perform
when they are employed pursuant to and individually
registered in:

0] A bona fide apprenticeship program registered
with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment
and Training Administration (ETA), Office of

Section Il - Page 1 of 3
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Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor
Services (OATELS), or with a state apprenticeship
agency recognized by OATELS, or if a person is
employed in his/her first 90 days of probationary
employment as an apprentice in such an
apprenticeship program, who is not individually
registered in the program, but who has been
certified by OATELS or a state apprenticeship
agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for
probationary employment as an apprentice; A

(0] trainee program which has received prior approval,
evidenced by formal certification by the
U.S. Department of Labor, ETA, or

(iii) A training/trainee program that has received prior
approval by HUD.

(b) Each apprentice or trainee must be paid at not less than

(©

the rate specified in the registered or approved program for
the apprentice’s/trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a
percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the
applicable wage determination. Apprentices and trainees
shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the
provisions of the registered or approved program. If the
program does not specify fringe benefits,
apprentices/trainees must be paid the full amount of fringe
benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable
classification.

The allowable ratio of apprentices or trainees to
journeyman on the job site in any craft classification shall
not be greater than the ratio permitted to the employer as
to the entire work force under the approved program.

(d) Any worker employed at an apprentice or trainee wage rate

who is not registered in an approved program, and any
apprentice or trainee performing work on the job site in
excess of the ratio permitted under the approved program,
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the
wage determination for the classification of work actually
performed.

(e) In the event OATELS, a state apprenticeship agency

recognized by OATELS or ETA, or HUD, withdraws
approval of an apprenticeship or trainee program, the
employer will no longer be permitted to utilize
apprentices/trainees at less than the applicable
predetermined rate for the work performed until an
acceptable program is approved.

Disputes concerning labor standards

@

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions

contained in Section Il of this form HUD-5370-C, other than
those in Paragraph 6, shall be subject to the following
procedures. Disputes within the meaning of this paragraph
include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its
subcontractors) and the HA, or HUD, or the employees or
their representatives, concerning payment of prevailing
wage rates or proper classification. The procedures in this
section may be initiated upon HUD’s own motion, upon
referral of the HA, or upon request of the Contractor or
subcontractor(s).

0 A Contractor and/or subcontractor or other
interested party desiring reconsideration of
findings of violation by the HA or HUD relating to
the payment of straight-time prevailing wages or
classification of work shall request such
reconsideration by letter postmarked within 30
calendar days of the date of notice of findings
issued by the HA or HUD. The request shall set

forth those findings that are in dispute and the
reasons, including any affirmative defenses, with
respect to the violations. The request shall be
directed to the appropriate HA or HUD official in
accordance with instructions contained in the
notice of findings or, if the notice does not specify
to whom a request should be made, to the
Regional Labor Relations Officer (HUD). The HA

(i or HUD official shall, within 60 days (unless
otherwise indicated in the notice of findings) after
receipt of a timely request for reconsideration,
issue a written decision on the findings of violation.
The written decision on reconsideration shall
contain instructions that any appeal of the decision
shall be addressed to the Regional Labor
Relations Officer by letter postmarked within 30
calendar days after the date of the decision. In the
event that the Regional Labor Relations Officer
was the deciding official on reconsideration, the
appeal shall be directed to the Director, Office of
Labor Relations (HUD). Any appeal must set forth
the aspects of the decision that are in dispute and
the reasons, including any affirmative defenses,
with respect to the violations. The Regional Labor

(i) Relations Officer shall, within 60 days (unless
otherwise indicated in the decision on
reconsideration) after receipt of a timely appeal,
issue a written decision on the findings. A decision
of the Regional Labor Relations Officer may be
appealed to the Director, Office of Labor Relations,
by letter postmarked within 30 days of the
Regional Labor Relations Officer’s decision. Any
appeal to the Director must set forth the aspects of
the prior decision(s) that are in dispute and the
reasons. The decision of the Director, Office of
Labor Relations, shall be

final.

(b) Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of
paragraph 6 shall not be subject to paragraph 5(a) of this
form HUD-5370C. Such disputes shall be resolved in
accordance with the procedures of the U.S. Department of
Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6 and 7. Disputes within
the meaning of this paragraph 5(b) include disputes
between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and
the HA, HUD, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the
employees or their representatives.

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act

The provisions of this paragraph 6 are applicable only where the
amount of the prime contract exceeds $100,000. As used in this
paragraph, the terms “laborers” and “mechanics” includes
watchmen and guards.

(a) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor
contracting for any part of the Contract work which may
require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics
shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any
workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to
work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not
less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all
hours worked in excess of
40 hours in such workweek.

(b) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated
damages. In the event of any violation of the provisions
set forth in paragraph 6(a), the Contractor and any
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subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the
unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the
case of work done under contract for the District of
Columbia or a territory, to the District or to such territory), for
liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be
computed with respect to each individual laborer or
mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in
violation of the provisions set forth in paragraph (a) of this
clause, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which
such individual was required or permitted to work in excess
of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of
the overtime wages required by provisions set forth in
paragraph (a) of this clause.

(c) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages.
HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon
written request of an authorized representative of the U.S.
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld,
from any moneys payable on account of work performed
by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such
Contract or any federal contract with the same prime
Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject
to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act,
which is held by the same prime Contractor such sums as
may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any
liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid
wages and liquidated damages as provided in the
provisions set forth in paragraph (b) of this clause.

7. Subcontracts

The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any
subcontracts all the provisions contained in this Section Il and
also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these
provisions in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor
shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or
lower tier subcontractor with all the provisions contained in
these clauses.

8. Non-Federal Prevailing Wage Rates

Any prevailing wage rate (including basic hourly rate and any
fringe benefits), determined under state law to be prevailing,
with respect to any employee in any trade or position
employed under the Contract, is inapplicable to the contract
and shall not be enforced against the Contractor or any
subcontractor, with respect to employees engaged under the
contract whenever such non-Federal prevailing wage rate,
exclusive of any fringe benefits, exceeds the applicable wage
rate determined by the Secretary of HUD to be prevailing in the
locality with respect to such trade or position.
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Instructions to Offerors
Non-Construction

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

i
L]

-03291 -

1. Preparation of Offers

(a) Offerors are expected to examine the statement of work, the
proposed contract terms and conditions, and all instructions. Failure
to do so will be at the offeror's risk.

(b) Each offeror shall furnish the information required by the solicita-
tion. The offeror shall sign the offer and print or type its name on the
cover sheet and each continuation sheet on which it makes an entry.
Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the
offer. Offers signed by an agent shall be accompanied by evidence of
that agent's authority, unless that evidence has been previously
furnished to the HA.

(c) Offers for services other than those specified will not be consid-
ered.

2. Submission of Offers

(a) Offers and modifications thereof shall be submitted in sealed
envelopes or packages (1) addressed to the office specified in the
solicitation, and (2) showing the time specified for receipt, the solicita-
tion number, and the name and address of the offeror.

(b) Telegraphic offers will not be considered unless authorized by the
solicitation; however, offers may be modified by written or telegraphic
notice.

(c) Facsimile offers, modifications or withdrawals will not be consid-
ered unless authorized by the solicitation.

3. Amendments to Solicitations

(a) M this salicitation is amended, then all terms and conditions which
are not modified remain unchanged.

(b) Offerors shall acknowledge receipt of any amendments to this
solicitation by
(1) signing and returning the amendment;
(2) identifying the amendment number and date in the space
provided for this purpose on the form for submitting an offer,
(3) letter or telegram, or
(4) facsimile, if facsimile offers are authorized in the solicitation.
The HA/HUD must recsive the acknowledgment by the time
specified for receipt of offers.

4. Explanation to Prospective Offerors

Any prospective offeror desiring an explanation or interpretation of the
solicitation, statement of work, etc., must request it in writing soon
enough to allow a reply to reach all prospective offerors before the
submission of their offers. Oral explanations or instructions given
before the award of the contract will not be binding. Any information
given to a prospective offeror concerning a soficitation will be furnished
promptly to all other prospective offerors as an amendment of the
solicitation, if that information is necessary in submitting offers or if the
lack of it would be prejudicial to any other prospective offerars.

5. Responsibility of Prospective Contractor

(a) The HA shall award a contract only to a responsible prospective
contractor who is able to perform successfully under the terms and
conditions of the proposed contract. To be determined responsible,
a prospective contractor must -
(1) Have adequate financial resources to performthe contract, or
the ability to obtain them;

{(2) Have a satisfactory performance record;
(3) Have a satistactory record of integrity and business ethics;
(4) Have a satisfactory record of compliance with public policy
‘(e.g., Equal Employment Opportunity); and
(5) Nothavebeen suspended, debarred, or otherwise determined
to be ineligible for award of contracts by the Department of
Housing and Urban Development or any other agency of the
U.S. Government. Current lists of ineligible contractors are
available for inspection at the HA/HUD.

(b) Before an offer is considered for award, the offeror may be
requested by the HA to submit a statement or other documentation
regarding any of the foregoing requirements. Failure by the offeror to
provide such additional information may render the offeror ineligible for
award.

6. Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Offers

(a) Any offer received at the place designated in the solicitation after
the exact time specified for receipt will not be considered unless it is
received before award is made and it -

(1) Was sent by registered or certified mail not later than the fifth
calendar day before the date specified for receipt of offers
(e.g., an offer submitted in response to a solicitation requiring
receipt of offers by the 20th of the month must have been
mailed by the 15th);

(2) Was sent by mail, or if autharized by the solicitation, was sent
by telegram or via facsimile, and it is determined by the HA/
HUD that the late receipt was due solely to mishandling by the
HA/MHUD after receipt at the HA;

(3) Was sent by U.S. Postal Service Express Mail Next Day
Service - Post Office to Addressee, not later than 5:00 p.m. at
the place of mailing two working days prior to the date specified
for receipt of proposals. The term “working days” excludes
weekends and U.S. Federal holidays; or

(4) Is the only offer received.

(b) Any modification of an offer, except a modification resuiting from
the HA's request for “best and final” offer (if this solicitation is a request
for proposals), is subject to the same conditions as in subparagraphs
(a)(1), (2), and (3) of this provision.

(c) A modification resulting from the HA's request for “best and final"
offer received after the time and date specified in the request will not
be considered unless receivedbefore award andthe late receipt isdue
solely to mishandling by the HA after receipt at the HA.

(d) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a
late offer, modification, or withdrawal sent either by registered or
certified mail is the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service postmark both on
the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. or
Canadian Postal Service. Both postmarks must show a legible date
or the offer, modification, or withdrawal shall be processed as if mailed
late. “Postmark” means a printed, stamped, or otherwise placed
impression (exclusive of a postage meter machine impression) that is
readily identifiable without further action as having been supplied and
affixed by employees of the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service on the
date of mailing. Therefore, offerors should request the postal clerk to
place a hand cancellation bull's-eye postmark on both the receipt and
the envelope or wrapper.

(e) Theonly acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt atthe
HA is the time/date stamp of HA on the offer wrapper or other
documentary evidence of receipt maintained by the HA.
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(fy The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a
late offer, modification, or withdrawal sent by Express Mail Next Day
Service-Post Office to Addressee isthe date entered by the post office
receiving clerk on the “Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to
Addressee” label and the postmark on both the envelope or wrapper
and on the original receipt from the U.S. Postal Service. “Postmark”
has the same meaning as defined in paragraph (c) of this provision,
excluding postmarks of the Canadian Postal Service. Therefore,
offerors should request the postal clerk to place a legible hand
canceilation bull's eye postmark on both the receipt and the envelope
or wrapper.

(g) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this provision, a late modification
of an otherwise successful offer that makes its terms more favorable
to the HA will be considered at any time it is received and may be
accepted.

(h) If this solicitation is a request for proposals, proposais may be
withdrawn by written notice, or if authorized by this solicitation, by
telegram (including mailgram) or facsimile machine transmission
received at any time before award. Proposals may be withdrawn in
person by a offeror or its authorized representative if the identity of the
person requesting withdrawal is established and the person signs a
receipt for the offer before award. If this solicitation is an invitation tor
bids, bids may be withdrawn at any time prior to bid opening.

7. Contract Award

(a) The HA will award a contract resutting from this solicitation to the
responsible offeror whose offer conforming to the solicitation will be
most advantageous tothe HA, cost or price and other factors, specified
elsewhere in this solicitation, considered.

(b) The HA may
(1) reject any or all offers if such action is in the HA'’s interest,
(2) accept other than the lowest offer,
(3) waive informalities and minor irregularities in offers received,
and (4) award more than one contract for all or part of the
requirements stated.

(c) f this solicitation is a request for proposals, the HA may award a
contract on the basis of initial offers received, without discussions.
Therefore, eachinitial offer should contain the offeror's bestterms from
a cost or price and technical standpoint.

(d) A written award or acceptance of offer mailed or otherwise
furnished to the successful ofteror within the time for acceptance
specified in the offer shall result in a binding contract without further
action by either party. If this solicitation is a request for proposals,
before the offer's specified expiration time, the HA may accept an offer,
whether or not there are negotiations after its receipt, unless a written
notice of withdrawal is received before award. Negotiations conducted
after receipt of an offer do not constitute a rejection or counteroffer by
the HA.

(8) Neither financial data submitted with an offer, nor representations
concerning facilities or financing, will form a part of the resulting
contract.

8. Service of Protest

Any protest against the award of acontract pursuant to this solicitation
shall be served onthe HA by obtaining written and dated acknowiedg-
ment of receipt from the HA at the address shown on the cover of this
solicitation. The determination of the HA with regard to such protest
or to proceed to award notwithstanding such protest shall be final
unless appealed by the protestor.

9. Offer Submission

Offers shall be submitted as follows and shall be enclosed in a sealed
envelope and addressed to the office specified in the solicitation. The
proposal shall show the hour and date specified in the solicitation
for receipt, the solicitation number, and the name and address of
the offeror, on the face of the envelope.

it is very important that the offer be properly identified onthe face
of the envelope as set forth above in order to insure that the date and
time of receipt is stamped on the face of the offer envelope. Receiving
procedures are: date and time stamp those envelopes identified as
proposals anddeliver them immediately to the appropriate contracting
official, and only date stamp those envelopes which do not contain
identification of the contents and deliver them to the appropriate
procuring activity only through the routine mail delivery procedure.

[Describe bid or proposal preparation instructions here:}
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U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No: 2577-0180 (exp. 7/30/96)
and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Certifications and
Representations

of Offerors
Non-Construction Contract

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 5 minutes per response, including the time for reviewinginstructions, searching
existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

This form includes clauses required by OMB'’s common rule on bidding/offering procedures, implemented by HUD in 24 CFR 85.36, and those requirements
setforth in Executive Order 11625 for small, minority, women-owned businesses, and certifications for independent price determination, and conflict of interest.
The formis required for nonconstruction contracts awarded by Housing Agencies (HAs). The form is used by bidders/offerors to certify to the HA's Contracting
Officer for contract compliance. If the form were not used, HAs would be unable to enforce their contracts. Responses to the collection of information are

required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.

1. Contingent Fee Representation and Agreement

(a) The bidder/offeror represents and certifies as part of its bid/
offer that, except for full-time bona fide employees working
solely for the bidder/offeror, the bidder/offeror:

(D[ ]has,[ ]hasnot employed or retained any person or
company to solicit or obtain this contract; and

(2)[ ] bas,[ ]hasnot paid or agreed to pay to any person
or company employed or retained to solicit or obtain this
contract any commission, percentage, brokerage, or other
fee contingent upon or resulting from the award of this
contract.

(b) If the answer to either (a)(1) or (a) (2) above is affirmative,
the bidder/offeror shall make an immediate and full written
disclosure to the PHA Contracting Officer.

(c) Any misrepresentation by the bidder/offeror shall give the
PHA the right to (1) terminate the resultant contract; (2) at its
discretion, to deduct from contract payments the amount of any
commission, percentage, brokerage, or other contingent fee; or
(3) take other remedy pursuant to the contract.

2. Small, Minority, Women-Owned Business Concern Rep-
resentation

The bidder/offeror represents and certifies as part of its bid/ offer
that it:

(@[ 1lis,[ ]isnotasmall business concern. “Small business
concern,” as used in this provision, means a concern, includ-
ing its affiliates, that is independently owned and operated,
not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding,
and qualified as a small business under the criteria and size
standards in 13 CFR 121.

(d)[ Jis,[ ]isnotawomen-owned small business concern.
“Women-owned,” as used in this provision, means a small
business that is at least 51 percent owned by a woman or
women who are U.S. citizens and who also control and
operate the business.

@I 1is,[ 1isnota minority enterprise which, pursuant to
Executive Order 11625, is defined as a business which is at
least 51 percent owned by one or more minority group
members or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least
51 percent of its voting stock is owned by one or more
minority group members, and whose management and daily
operations are controlled by one or more such individuals.

For the purpose of this definition, minority group members are:
(Check the block applicable to you)
[ 1 Black Americans [ 1 Asian Pacific Americans
[ 1 Hispanic Americans [ ] Asian Indian Americans
[ ] Native Americans [ 1 Hasidic Jewish Americans

3. Certificate of Independent Price Determination
(a) The bidder/offeror certifies that—

(1) The prices in this bid/offer have been arrived at indepen-
dently, without, for the purpose of restricting competi-
tion, any consultation, communication, or agreement
with any other bidder/offeror or competitor relating to (i)
those prices, (ii) the intention to submit a bid/offer, or
(iii) the methods or factors used to calculate the prices
offered;

(2) The prices in this bid/offer have not been and will not be
knowingly disclosed by the bidder/offeror, directly or
indirectly, to any other bidder/offeror or competitor be-
fore bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation)
or contract award (in the case of a negotiated solicitation)
unless otherwise required by law; and

(3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder/
offeror to induce any other concern to submit or not to
submita bid/offer for the purpose of restricting competition.

(b) Each signature on the bid/offer is considered to be a certifi-
cation by the signatory that the signatory:

(1) Is the person in the bidder/offeror’s organization respon-
sible for determining the prices being offered in this bid
or proposal, and that the signatory has not participated
and will not participate in any action contrary to subpara-
graphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; or

(2) (i) Has been authorized, in writing, to act as agent for the
following principals in certifying that those principals
have not participated, and will not participate in any
action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3)
above (insert full name of person(s) in the bidder/offeror’s
organization responsible for determining the prices of-
fered in this bid or proposal, and the title of his or her
position in the bidder/offeror’s organization);

(ii) As an authorized agent, does certify that the princi-
pals named in subdivision (b)(2)(i) above have not par-
ticipated, and will not participate, in any action contrary
to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; and
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(iii) Asan agent, has not personally participated, and will
not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs
(a)(1) through (a)(3) above.

(c) If the bidder/offeror deletes or modifies subparagraph (a)2
above, the bidder/offeror must furnish with its bid/offer a
signed statement setting forth in detail the circumstances of
the disclosure.

4. Organizational Conflicts of Interest Certification

(a) The Contractor warrants that to the best of its knowledge and
belief and except as otherwise disclosed, it does not have any
organizational conflict of interest which is defined as a
situation in which the nature of work under a proposed
contract and a prospective contractor’s organizational, fi-
nancial, contractual or other interest are such that:

(i) Award of the contract may result in an unfair competi-
tive advantage;

(it) The Contractor’s objectivity in performing the con-
tract work may be impaired; or

(iii) That the Contractor has disclosed all relevant infor-
mation and requested the HA to make a determination
with respect to this Contract.

(b) The Contractor agrees that if after award he or she discovers
an organizational conflict of interest with respect to this
contract, he or she shall make an immediate and full disclo-
sure in writing to the HA which shall include a description of
the action which the Contractor has taken or intends to
eliminate or neutralize the conflict. The HA may, however,
terminate the Contract for the convenience of HA if it would
be in the best interest of HA.

(c) In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational
conflict of interest before the award of this Contract and
intentionally did not disclose the conflict to the HA, the HA
may terminate the Contract for default.

(d) The Contractor shall require a disclosure or representation
from subcontractors and consultants who may be in a position
to influence the advice or assistance rendered to the HA and
shall include any necessary provisions to eliminate or neutralize
conflicts of interest in consultant agreements or subcontracts
involving performance or work under this Contract.

5. Authorized Negotiators (RFPs only)

The offeror represents that the following persons are authorized
to negotiate on its behalf with the PHA in connection with this
request for proposals: (list names, titles, and telephone numbers
of the authorized negotiators):

6. Conflict of Interest

In the absence of any actual or apparent conflict, the offeror, by
submission of a proposal, hereby warrants that to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no actual or apparent conflict of interest
exists with regard to my possible performance of this procure-
ment, as described in the clause in this solicitation titled “Orga-
nizational Conflict of Interest.”

7. Offeror's Signature

The offeror hereby certifies that the information contained in
these certifications and representations is accurate, complete,
and current.

Signature & Date:

Typed or Printed Name:

Title:
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LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

Company:

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION CONCERNING EEO

MINORITY EMPLOYEES

AFRICAN NATIVE ASIAN OR
CAUCASION AMERICAN HISPANIC AMERICAN PACIFIC
Total
Sub Category Employees M F M F M F M M
Officer/Supervisors
Technicians

Housing Sales/Rental
Management

Office/Clerical

Service Workers

Other

TRADE:

Journeyman

Helpers

Apprentices

Other

TRADE:

Journeyman

Helpers

Apprentices

Other

TOTAL

TOTAL %




LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY

| attest that the above information is true and correct.

Print Name Title Date

Signature

(STATE OF OHIO

COUNTY)

I, the undersigned authority, A Notary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby certify that,

, whose name as of is
signed to the foregoing conveyance and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day, that being informed of the
contents of the foregoing conveyance, he/she in his/her capacity as , and with

full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said Business entity.

Given under my hand and official seal, this day of ,20

Notary Public
My commission Expires




NON-COLLUSIVE

AFFIDAVIT

State of )

County of )

, being

first duly sworn, deposes and says:

That he/she is the party making the foregoing proposal or bid, that such proposal or
bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that said bidder has not colluded,
conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any bidder or person, to
put in a sham bid or to refrain from bidding, and has not in any manner, directly or
indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or communication or conference, with
any person, to fix the bid price or affiant, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure
any advantage against the Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority or any person
interested in the proposed contract; and that all statements in said proposal or bid
are true.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of
20__.

Notary Public

My Commission expires




Contractor/Vendor Qualification Statement
(Page 1 of 2)

(1) Prime Sub-contractor (This form must be completed by and for each).

(2) Name of Firm: Telephone: Fax:

(3) Street Address, City, State, Zip:

(4) Please attached a brief biography/resume of the company, including the following information:
(a) Year Firm Established; (b) Year Firm Established in [JURISDICTION]; (c) Former Name and
Year Established (if applicable); (d) Name of Parent Company and Date Acquired (if applicable).

(5) Identify Principals/Partners in Firm (submit a brief professional resume for each):
NAME TITLE % OF OWNERSHIP \

(6) Identify the individual(s) that will act as project manager and any other supervisory personnel that
will work on project. (Do not duplicate any resumes required above):
NAME TITLE

(7) Proposer Diversity Statement: You must circle all of the following that apply to the ownership of this firm
and enter where provided the correct percentage (%) of ownership of each:

(] Caucasian (J Public-Held (J Government (J Non-Profit
American (Male) Corporation Agency Organization
% % % %

Resident- (RBE), Minority- (MBE), or Woman-Owned (WBE) Business Enterprise (Qualifies by virtue of 51%
or more ownership and active management by one or more of the following:
(JResident- (JAfrican (J**Native  (JHispanic  (JAsian/Pacific (JHasidic (JAsian/Indian

Owned* American American American American Jew American
% % % % % % %
(JWoman-Owned (JWoman-Owned (JDisabled (JOther (Specify):
(MBE) (Caucasian) Veteran
% % % %
WMBE Certification Number:
Certified by (Agency):

(NOTE: A CERTIFICATION/NUMBER NOT REQUIRED TO PROPOSE - ENTER IF AVAILABLE)

Signature Date Printed Name Company
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Contractor/Vendor Qualification Statement
(Page 2 of 2)

(8) Federal Tax ID No.:

(9) [APPROPRIATE JURISDICTION] Business License No.:

(10) State of License Type and No.:

(11)Worker’s Compensation Insurance Carrier:
Policy No.: Expiration Date:

(12) General Liability Insurance Carrier:
Policy No. Expiration Date:

(13) Professional Liability Insurance Carrier:
Policy No. Expiration Date:

(14) Debarred Statement: Has this firm, or any principal(s) ever been debarred from providing
any services by the Federal Government, any state government, the State of , or
any local government agency within or without the State of ? Yes () No (J
If "Yes," please attach a full detailed explanation, including dates, circumstances and current
status.

(15) Disclosure Statement: Does this firm or any principals thereof have any current, past personal
or professional relationship with any Commissioner or Officer of the HA? Yes (] No (]
If "Yes," please attach a full detailed explanation, including dates, circumstances and current
status.

(16) Non-Collusive Affidavit: The undersigned party submitting this proposal hereby certifies that
such proposal is genuine and not collusive and that said proposer entity has not colluded,
conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any proposer or person, to put in a
sham proposal or to refrain from proposing, and has not in any manner, directly or indirectly
sought by agreement or collusion, or communication or conference, with any person, to fix
the proposal price of affiant or of any other proposer, to fix overhead, profit or cost element
of said proposal price, or that of any other proposer or to secure any advantage against the
HA or any person interested in the proposed contract; and that all statements in said proposal
are true.

(17) Verification Statement: The undersigned proposer hereby states that by completing and
submitting this form he/she is verifying that all information provided herein is, to the best of
his/her knowledge, true and accurate, and agrees that if the HA discovers that any
information entered herein is false, that shall entitle the HA to not consider nor make award
or to cancel any award with the undersigned party.

Signature Date Printed Name Company
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TABLE 5.1 of HUD Procurement Handbook 7460.8 REV 2

MANDATORY CONTRACT CLAUSES FOR SMALL PURCHASES OTHER THAN
CONSTRUCTION

The following contract clauses are required in contracts pursuant to 24 CFR 85.36(i) and Section 6002 of the
Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. HUD is
permitted to require changes, remedies, changed conditions, access and records retention, suspension of work,
and other clauses approved by the Office of Federal Procurement Policy. The PHA and contractor is also
subject to other Federal laws including the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended, Federal regulations, and
state law and regulations.

Examination and Retention of Contractor’s Records. The PHA, HUD, or Comptroller General of the
United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall, until three years after final payment under
this contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the Contractor’s directly pertinent books,
documents, papers, or other records involving transactions related to this contract for the purpose of making
audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.

Right in Data and Patent Rights (Ownership and Proprietary Interest). The PHA shall have exclusive
ownership of, all proprietary interest in, and the right to full and exclusive possession of all information,
materials, and documents discovered or produced by Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Contract,
including, but not limited to, reports, memoranda or letters concerning the research and reporting tasks of the
Contract.

Energy Efficiency. The Contractor shall comply with all mandatory standards and policies relating to energy
efficiency which are contained in the energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy
and Conservation Act (Pub.L. 94-163) for the State in which the work under this contract is performed.

Procurement of Recovered Materials

(@) In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act, the Contractor shall procure items designated in guidelines of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered
materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition. The Contractor shall
procure items designated in the EPA guidelines that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials
practicable unless the Contractor determines that such items: (1) are not reasonably available in a reasonable
period of time; (2) fail to meet reasonable performance standards, which shall be determined on the basis of
the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology, if applicable to the item; or (3) are only
available at an unreasonable price.

(b) Paragraph (a) of this clause shall apply to items purchased under this contract where: (1) the Contractor
purchases in excess of $10,000 of the item under this contract; or (2) during the preceding Federal
fiscal year, the Contractor: (i) purchased any amount of the items for use under a contract that was funded
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TABLE 5.1 of HUD Procurement Handbook 7460.8 REV 2

MANDATORY CONTRACT CLAUSES FOR SMALL PURCHASES OTHER THAN
CONSTRUCTION

with Federal appropriations and was with a Federal agency or a State agency or agency of a political
subdivision of a State; and (ii) purchased a total of in excess of $10,000 of the item both under and outside
that contract.

Termination for Cause and for Convenience (contracts of $10,000 or more).

(a) The PHA may terminate this contract in whole, or from time to time in part, for the PHA’s convenience or
the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations (cause/default). The PHA shall terminate by
delivering to the Contractor a written Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date
of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall: (1) immediately discontinue all services
affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the PHA all information, reports, papers, and
other materials accumulated or generated in performing the contract, whether completed or in process.

(b) If the termination is for the convenience of the PHA, the PHA shall be liable only for payment for services
rendered before the effective date of the termination.

(c) If the termination is due to the failure of the Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the contract
(cause/default), the PHA may (1) require the Contractor to deliver to it, in the manner and to the extent
directed by the PHA, any work described in the Notice of Termination; (2) take over the work and prosecute
the same to completion by contract of otherwise, and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost
incurred by the PHA,; and (3) withhold any payments to the Contractor, for the purpose of set-off or partial
payment, as the case may be, of amounts owned by the PHA by the Contractor. In the event of termination for
cause/default, the PHA shall be liable to the Contractor for reasonable costs incurred by the Contractor before
the effective date of the termination. Any dispute shall be decided by the Contracting Officer.
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Section 3 Business Preference Submittal Form
(QSP or IFB Attachment D)

1.0

2.0

Introduction. This form must be fully completed, accompanied by all required

attachments, for any bidder claiming a Section 3 Business Preference (hereinafter,
"Preference").

1.1

1.2

1.3

This fully completed form and any attachments thereto, will become a part of
any ensuing contract.

Each bidder shall mark an "X" where provided following for all that apply to
his/her claim of a Preference.

The bidder shall provide as an attachment to this completed form a detailed
work plan clearly explaining how each following "preference claim” will be
accomplished. Failure on the part of the bidder to include any such required
attachment fully explaining the claim of the bidder shall result in the Agency
not considering the claim for a Preference (though the Agency may, if awarded,
later require the bidder to submit the information to satisfy the Section 3
requirements of the ensuing contract).

Current Section 3 Status. The undersigned bidder hereby claims that it is a Section 3

business concern and claims such preference in that he/she can provide evidence that
(the bidder has attached justifying documentation for each item following marked

with an "X"):
2.1 ____ Itis 51% or more owned by a Section 3 resident(s):
[Table No. 1]
(1) (2) (3)
Mark
“X”* if
Section Included Description
2.1.1 Agency resident lease
2.1.2 Evidence of participation in a public assistance program
2.1. Articles of Incorporation

3
2.1.4 Fictitious or Assumed Business Name Certificate
2.1.5 List of owners/stockholders and % of each
6
7

2.1. Latest Board minutes appointing officers

2.1. Organization chart with names and titles and brief
functional statement

2.1.8 Partnership Agreement

2.1.9 Corporation Annual Report

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Submittal Form
(QSP or IFB Attachment D)

2.2 At least 30% of its full-time employees include persons that are currently
Section 3 residents, or within 3 years of the date of first employment with the
business concern were Section 3 residents:

2.2.1 To justify this claim, please see the immediate following:

[Table No. 2]

(1) (2) (3)

Total Number of Total Number of

Current Permanent Section 3 Resident
Classification Employees Employees

Trainees

Apprentices
Journeypersons
Laborers
Supervisory
Superintendent
Professional
Clerical

Other:
.

2.2.2 Attach a listing of all employees listed within column (3) above,
including name and total annual income. Also attach proof of the
income, such as a copy of the last tax return (please be sure to
“black-out” all but the last 4 digits of the person(s) social security
number), or other documentation showing receipt of public
assistance.

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Submittal Form
(QSP or IFB Attachment D)

2.3 He/she has a commitment to subcontract in excess of 25% of the dollar
award of all subcontracts to be awarded to a Section 3 business concern.

2.3.1 To justify this claim, please see the immediate following:

[Table No. 3]
(3)
Percentage the
Subcontract(s)
is/are of the
Total Proposed

Name of Section 3 Firm Total Amount of Contract
Receiving the Subcontract Subcontract(s) Amount

2.3.2 Attach for each firm listed immediately above:
2.3.2.1 A detailed description of the subcontracted activity; and
2.3.2.2 A fully completed Profile of Firm form.

2.3.2.3 Proof of the income of the ownership of the Section 3 firm
receiving the subcontract, such as a copy of the last tax
return for the owner(s) (please be sure to “black-out” all
but the last 4 digits of the person(s) social security number).

3.0 The undersigned bidder hereby declares:

3.1 The information within this completed form (and any attachments) is, to the
best of his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

3.2 He/she is aware that if the Agency discovers that any such information is not
true and accurate, such shall allow the Agency to:

3.2.1 NOT award the bidder a Preference; and

3.2.2 If the Agency deems such is warranted (e.g. in the case of submitting
information the bidder knows to be untrue), declare such bidder to be
nonresponsive and not allow the bidder to receive an award.

3.3 He/she is aware that if he/she receives and award as the result of this
competitive solicitation, even though he/she may not receive a Preference from

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Submittal Form
(QSP or IFB Attachment D)

the Agency as a result of this submittal, he/she will still be required to, to the
greatest extent feasible, implement a Section 3 Plan, including a commitment
to interview and consider hiring Section 3 persons (most specifically, residents
of the Agency) whenever the successful bidder has need to hire additional
employees during the term of the ensuing contract.

The undersigned contractor hereby affirms that the foregoing is true and accurate and that
he/she hereby agrees to comply as denoted herein.

Signature

Date Printed Name Company

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

Introduction. The purpose of this document is to, in simplified terms, explain to proposers,
major issues pertaining to the Section 3 Business Preference program required by the
Agency's funding source, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).
Also, hereinafter, a Section 3 Business Preference will be referred to as "Preference.”

What is Section 3?

2.1 Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, which
recognizes that HUD funds are typically one of the largest sources of federal funding
expended in communities, including those communities served by the Housing
Authority. Section 3 is intended to ensure that when a contractor has need to hire
additional people as the result of receiving a contract from the Lucas Metropolitan
Housing Authority (hereinafter, the "HA"), preference must be given to low- and very
low-income persons residing in Lucas County, Ohio (Section 3 resident), or Section 3
business concerns.

2.2 The requirements pertaining to Section 3 apply only to purchases and contracts the
Agency completes for work—the requirements of Section 3 DOES NOT apply to
purchases or contracts the Agency completes solely for commodities or equipment;
meaning, "no work provided, no Section 3 required.”

2.3  Section 3 is race and gender neutral in that preferences are based on income-level and
location.

What does the term "Section 3 resident” mean?
3.1 A "Section 3 resident” is:
3.1.1 A public housing resident of the HA; or
3.1.2 A low- or very low-income resident of Lucas County, Ohio.

3.1.2.1 Low- and very low-income who resides in the service area where
Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority services including Lucas
County, Ohio, Monroe County, Michigan, Fulton County Ohio and
Wood County Ohio with the exception of Bowling Green is located
and whose total household income does not exceed the following
amounts:

[Table No. 1]

Income
Limit (1) (2) (3) (4) () (6) (7) (8)

Category Person | Persons | Persons | Persons Persons Persons Persons Persons
Household
Income

$38,600 $44,100 | $49,600 | $55,100 | $59,550 | $63,950 | $68,350 | $72,750

Table of 2019 Adjusted Mean Income for Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority

What does the term "Section 3 business concern” mean?

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

5.0

6.0

4.1

A "Section 3 business concern” is a business that can provide evidence that it meets
one of the following:

4.1.1 It is 51% or more owned by a Section 3 resident; or

4.1.2 At least 30% of its full-time employees include person that are currently
Section 3 residents, or within 3 years of the date of first employment with
the business concern were Section 3 residents; or

4.1.3 Provides evidence of a commitment to subcontract in excess of 25% of the
dollar award of all subcontracts to be awarded to business concerns that
meet the qualifications within the preceding 3.1.1 or 3.1.2.

Is participation in Section 3 optional?

5.1

5.2

5.3

Except for purchases or contracts solely for commodities and equipment, as a part of
the solicitation the Agency will offer all bidders the option of a Preference.

In response to a competitive solicitation (Request for Proposals or Qualifications),
proposers are not required to respond to the Agency with a claim of a Preference
(meaning, such claim is optional and failure to respond with a claim of a Preference
will not cause the bidder to be deemed non-responsive); however, if a proposer does
claim a Preference, then the HA will consider, investigate, and determine the validity
of each such claim for a Preference.

Regardless of whether a proposer claims a Preference in response to a solicitation, the
recipient of the award will be required to, "to the greatest extent feasible,” implement
the requirements of Section 3 during the ensuing awarded contract term.

Must a contractor receiving an award from the Agency take part in the Section 3 program?

6.1

The short answer is "Yes," as detailed following, each contractor must, "to the greatest
extend feasible,"” take part in the program.

6.1.1 If the contractor wishes, he/she may claim a Preference during the
competitive solicitation process (please see Attachment D, most specifically
Section 2.0 therein). Pertaining to an IFB or QSP competitive solicitation
process, the Agency will give a Preference based upon the following:

[Table No. 2]
. = [Preference=lesserof: |
When the lowest responsive bid is less than 10% of that bid or $9,000
$100,000
When the lowest responsive bid is: _
At least $100,000 but less than $200,000 9% of that bid, or $16,000
At least $200,000 but less than $300,000 8% of that bid, or $21,000
At least $300,000 but less than $400,000 7% of that bid, or $24,000
At least $400,000 but less than $500,000 6% of that bid, or $25,000
At least $500,000 but less than $1,000,000 5% of that bid, or $40,000
At least $1,000,000 but less than $2,000,000 | 4% of that bid, or $60,000

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

7.0

At least $2,000,000 but less than $4,000,000 | 3% of that bid, or $80,000
At least $4,000,000 but less than $7,000,000 | 2% of that bid, or $105,000

$7,000,000 or more 1%2 % of lowest responsive
bid, with no dollar limit

6.1.2 It is possible that a contractor may demonstrate, to the Agency's satisfaction
that he/she has made a good faith and reasonable effort to comply with the
requirements of Section 3, but it is not feasible to implement any portion of
the Section 3 program. Such failure must be fully documented by the
contractor and approved by the Agency or that contractor may be deemed
not responsible by the Agency and the contract may be, at the Agency's
discretion, not awarded or terminated.

Be aware that, as detailed within §135.38, the following Section 3 Clause will be a part of
every applicable contract the Agency executes, and when a contractor executes the contract
he/she is thereby agreeing to comply with the following:

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

SECTION 3 CLAUSE

The work to be performed under this contract is project assisted under a program
providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and
Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and
Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U. S. C. 170lu. Section 3 requires
that to the greatest extent feasible, opportunities for training and employment be
given to lower income residents of the area of the Section 3 covered project and
contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns
which are located in, or owned in, substantial part by persons residing in the area of
the Section 3 covered project.

The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the
regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban
Development set forth in 24 CFR, Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the
Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to
this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability,
which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.

The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with
which s/he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if
any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers’ representative of its
commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in
conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or training.

The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in
connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient
of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract
upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the
Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR, Part 135, the contractor will not
subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter
has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR, Part 135 and will not let any

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

8.0

7.5

7.6

7.7

subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement
of ability to comply with the requirements of this regulation.

Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR, Part
135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued thereunder prior to
the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance
provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient, its contractors and
subcontractors, its successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or
loan agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided and to such
sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR, Part 135.

Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions,
termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD
assisted contracts.

With respect to work performed in connection with Section 3 covered Indian housing
assistance, Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance
Action (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract.
Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (I) preference and
opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference
in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and
Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the
provisions of Section 3 and Section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the
maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).

As detailed within 24 CFR §135, Appendix |, Examples of Efforts To Offer Training and
Employment Opportunities to Section 3 Residents, as a part of the contract award process, to
satisfy the requirements of Section 3 the successful bidder or Contractor will be able to
denote the "efforts” his/her firm will formally commit to implement if he/she is awarded a
contract:

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Entering into “first source” hiring agreements with organizations representing Section
3 residents.

Sponsoring a HUD-certified “Step-Up” employment and training program for section 3
residents.

Establishing training programs, which are consistent with the requirements of the
Department of Labor, for public and Indian housing residents and other section 3
residents in the building trades.

Advertising the training and employment positions by distributing flyers (which identify
the positions to be filled, the qualifications required, and where to obtain additional
information about the application process) to every occupied dwelling unit in the
housing development or developments where category 1 or category 2 persons (as
these terms are defined in §135.34) reside.

Advertising the training and employment positions by posting flyers (which identify the
positions to be filled, the qualifications required, and where to obtain additional
information about the application process) in the common areas or other prominent
areas of the housing development or developments. For the Agency, post such

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

advertising in the housing development or developments where category 1 or category
2 persons reside; for all other recipients, post such advertising in the housing
development or developments and transitional housing in the neighborhood or service
area of the section 3 covered project.

Contacting resident councils, resident management corporations, or other resident
organizations, where they exist, in the housing development or developments where
category 1 or category 2 persons reside, and community organizations in HUD-assisted
neighborhoods, to request the assistance of these organizations in notifying residents
of the training and employment positions to be filled.

Sponsoring (scheduling, advertising, financing or providing in-kind services) a job
informational meeting to be conducted by an Agency or contractor representative or
representatives at a location in the housing development or developments where
category 1 or category 2 persons reside or in the neighborhood or service area of the
section 3 covered project.

Arranging assistance in conducting job interviews and completing job applications for
residents of the housing development or developments where category 1 or category 2
persons reside in the neighborhood or service area in which a section 3 project is
located.

Arranging for a location in the housing development or developments where category 1
persons reside, or the neighborhood or service area of the project, where job
applications may be delivered to and collected by a recipient or contractor
representative or representatives.

Conducting job interviews at the housing development or developments where
category 1 or category 2 persons reside, or at a location within the neighborhood or
service area of the section 3 covered project.

Contacting agencies administering HUD Youthbuild programs, and requesting their
assistance in recruiting HUD Youthbuild program participants for the Agency's or
contractor’s training and employment positions.

Consulting with State and local agencies administering training programs funded
through JTPA or JOBS, probation and parole agencies, unemployment compensation
programs, community organizations and other officials or organizations to assist with
recruiting Section 3 residents for the Agency's or contractor's training and employment
positions.

Advertising the jobs to be filled through the local media, such as community television
networks, newspapers of general circulation, and radio advertising.

Employing a job coordinator or contracting with a business concern that is licensed in
the field of job placement (preferably one of the section 3 business concerns identified
in part 135), that will undertake, on behalf of the Agency, other recipient or
contractor, the efforts to match eligible and qualified section 3 residents with the
training and employment positions that the Agency or contractor intends to fill.

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

9.0

8.15 For the Agency, employing section 3 residents directly on either a permanent or a
temporary basis to perform work generated by section 3 assistance. (This type of
employment is referred to as “force account labor” in HUD's Indian housing
regulations. See 24 CFR §905.102, and §905.201(a)(6).)

8.16 Where there are more qualified section 3 residents than there are positions to be
filled, maintaining a file of eligible qualified section 3 residents for future employment
positions.

8.17 Undertaking job counseling, education, and related programs in association with local
educational institutions.

8.18 Undertaking such continued job training efforts as may be necessary to ensure the
continued employment of section 3 residents previously hired for employment
opportunities.

8.19 After selection of bidders but prior to execution of contracts, incorporating into the
contract a negotiated provision for a specific number of public housing or other section
3 residents to be trained or employed on the section 3 covered assistance.

8.20 Coordinating plans and implementation of economic development (e.g., job training
and preparation, business development assistance for residents) with the planning for
housing and community development.

As detailed within 24 CFR §135, Appendix Il, Examples of Efforts To Award Contracts to
Section 3 Business Concerns, as a part of the contract award process, to satisfy the
requirements of Section 3 the successful bidder or Contractor will be able to denote the
"efforts” his/her firm will formally commit to implement if he/she is awarded a contract:

9.1 Utilizing procurement procedures for section 3 business concerns similar to those
provided in 24 CFR part 905 for business concerns owned by Native Americans (see
section Il of this Appendix).

9.2 In determining the responsibility of potential contractors, consider their record of
section 3 compliance as evidenced by past actions and their current plans for the
pending contract.

9.3 Contacting business assistance agencies, minority contractors associations, and
community organizations to inform them of contracting opportunities and requesting
their assistance in identifying section 3 businesses which may solicit bids or bids for
contracts for work in connection with section 3 covered assistance.

9.4  Advertising contracting opportunities by posting notices, which provide general
information about the work to be contracted and where to obtain additional
information, in the common areas or other prominent areas of the housing
development or developments owned and managed by the Agency.

9.5 For the Agency, contacting resident councils, resident management corporations, or

other resident organizations, where they exist, and requesting their assistance in
identifying category 1 and category 2 business concerns.

LUCAS METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.20

Providing written notice to all known section 3 business concerns of the contracting
opportunities. This notice should be in sufficient time to allow the section 3 business
concerns to respond to the bid invitations or request for bids.

Following up with section 3 business concerns that have expressed interest in the
contracting opportunities by contacting them to provide additional information on the
contracting opportunities.

Coordinating pre-bid meetings at which section 3 business concerns could be informed
of upcoming contracting and subcontracting opportunities.

Carrying out workshops on contracting procedures and specific contract opportunities
in a timely manner so that section 3 business concerns can take advantage of upcoming
contracting opportunities, with such information being made available in languages
other than English where appropriate.

Advising section 3 business concerns as to where they may seek assistance to overcome
limitations such as inability to obtain bonding, lines of credit, financing, or insurance.

Arranging solicitations, times for the presentation of bids, quantities, specifications,
and delivery schedules in ways to facilitate the participation of section 3 business
concerns.

Where appropriate, breaking out contract work items into economically feasible units
to facilitate participation by section 3 business concerns.

Contacting agencies administering HUD Youthbuild programs, and notifying these
agencies of the contracting opportunities.

Advertising the contracting opportunities through trade association papers and
newsletters, and through the local media, such as community television networks,
newspapers of general circulation, and radio advertising.

Developing a list of eligible section 3 business concerns.

For the Agency, participating in the “Contracting with Resident-Owned Businesses”
program provided under 24 CFR part 963.

Establishing or sponsoring programs designed to assist residents of public or Indian
housing in the creation and development of resident-owned businesses.

Establishing numerical goals (number of awards and dollar amount of contracts) for
award of contracts to section 3 business concerns.

Supporting businesses which provide economic opportunities to low income persons by
linking them to the support services available through the Small Business
Administration (SBA), the Department of Commerce and comparable agencies at the
State and local levels.

Encouraging financial institutions, in carrying out their responsibilities under the

Community Reinvestment Act, to provide no or low interest loans for providing working
capital and other financial business needs.
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Section 3 Business Preference Explanation
(QSP or IFB Attachment D-1)

9.21 Actively supporting joint ventures with section 3 business concerns.

9.22 Actively supporting the development or maintenance of business incubators which
assist Section 3 business concerns.
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Section 3 Business Preference Documentation Not Feasible and Non-

Trigger Status
(QSP Attachment D-2)

POTENTIAL STATUS AS A SECTION 3 FIRM: "As described in" 24 CFR 135.5, Section 3 business
concern, | hereby declare that my firm does not qualify as a Section 3 business concern; in
that:

(1) | am the sole owner and my income does not meet the Section 3 guidelines. Accordingly,
my firm is not "51 percent or more owned by section 3 residents;" and

(2) As | am the sole employee, | have no "permanent, full-time employees.” Accordingly, there
are no Section 3 residents employed at my firm; and

(3) |1 do not have any intention to "subcontract in excess of 25 percent of the dollar award of
all subcontracts to be awarded to . . . [a] section 3 business concern.” As | will not be
subcontracting any of the contract to any other business concern, claim of this is not
“feasible.”

MY PROPOSED SECTION 3 PLAN: (a) Within 24 CFR 135.1(a), HUD states that the purpose of

the Section 3 requirements is to ". . . ensure that employment and other economic
opportunities . . . shall, to the greatest extent feasible, . . . be directed to low- and very
low-income persons . . ." (NOTE: Underlining added by me).

(b) Subcontracting. | hereby state that it is not "feasible” or reasonable for me to hire or
retain any other person, much less a section 3 person, to assist in the performance of the
ensuing contract. To explain in detail: It is clear that performance of the work detailed
within the contract requires a very specialized skill-set and extensive knowledge and
experience. It is extremely unlikely that | would be able to locate a Section 3 person with the
requisite knowledge and experience to perform this work. If the work was extensive enough,
I have other skilled sources and could retain another contractor to help; however, the work
listed is well within my capabilities and abilities and it is my decision that the work in this
contract would be best served by my performing the contract myself.

(c) Numerical Goals. As the award of this contract to my firm would not at any time result in
any new hires, the "numerical goals” detailed within 24 CFR 135.30(a)(4)(b) do not apply to
my firm; nor do the optional subcontract awards detailed within the following 24 CFR
135.30(a)(4)(c)(2).

(d) Section 3 Offer. Within the Appendix to Part 135, Examples of Efforts To Award Contracts
to Section 3 Business Concerns, HUD details a number things that the Housing Authority and
Contractor may implement to increase the effectiveness of its Section 3 efforts. | am pleased
to make this offer: consistent with the level set within 24 CFR 135.30(c)(2), as requested by
the HA, | will donate not less than 3% of my time contracted by the HA to assist the HA to
effectively implement HUD requirements and these recommendations within the LMHA
Section 3 plan, procedures and efforts. | believe that this offer meets the HUD requirement
of "to the greatest extent feasible” as | ascertain how | can help the HA with this most
important issue.

Signed By:

Date:

Lucas Metropolitan Housing Authority






